PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY

HISTORIC SITE SUMMARY SHEET

T pvey ¢ POATAA-LD Building pate 1780's, 1840's

Partnership

Building Name

' i . Mitchellville, Maryland
Location 13710 Central Avenue (Wild World), Mitche v

Private/Park-Recreation/Deteriorated/Unoccupied/Inaccessible

Description:

Partnership is a two-and-one-half story side-gabled brick planta-
tion house of the eighteenth century, with Victorian renovations of the
mid-nineteenth century; attached to its east gable end is a later two-story
frame kitchen wing. The main block is five bays by an irregular three
bays, and the brick is laid in Flemish bond with regularly-placed glazed
headers. The gable roof is belcast, and there are four flush chimneys at
the gable ends. Entrance is in the central bay of the main south facade,
through a door with transom and sidelights. Interior follows a modified
Georgian plan: central passage with alcove staircase, flanked by double
parlors. The central passage is divided by a handsome arch with panelled
jambs and soffit, fluted pilasters, and fine Federal-style gougework. The
two-run staircase is built into the enlarged northeast corner of the pas-
sage. Parlors exhibit Greek Revival style mantels. The house stands on a
high knol1l in the midst of a recreational park; on the grounds is a single
gravestone.

Significance:

Partnership is a multi-period brick plantation house which incor-
porates important architectural features from both the Federal and Greek
Revival periods. Located in the heart of "The Forest" of Prince George’s
County, it was the seat of two important county families. The main block
of the house was built by Benjamin Hall late in the eighteenth century,
possibly incorporating the earlier dwelling of his grandfather. The plan-
tation was purchased by the Berry family in 1844, and it was Thomas E.
Berry who rebuilt and renovated the house with elements of the Greek Reviv-
al style. Partnership is one of only four surviving buildings of this
type, period, and significance in the central section of the County. It is
an important example of a composite building, and was the home of two of
Prince George’s County’s most prominent families.

Acreage: 278.78 acres



- At e et e samem - ————— - - R T I PP U

Survey No. P _G.#74A-15"

Magi No.
Maryland Historical Trust |
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE _yes _no
1. Name (indicate preferred name)
historic Partnership (preferred). ‘
and/or Common Partnership, Ellerslie, Pleasant Hill
2. Location
strost & number ' 13710 Central Avenue (Maryland Route 214) —— not for publicstion
city, town Mitchellville — Vicinity of congressional district 5
state Maryland county Prince George's
3. Classification
Category ‘Ownership ~ Status Present Use
— district _pubuc — OCCupied —— agriculture —_— museum
—X buliding(s) _X_ private —X unoccupied ——_ commercisi X perk
——structure  __both —— work irr progress —— educstionasl — private residenc >
— site Public Acquisition Accessible X_ entertainment —— religious:
—— object — in process — YO8 restricted — government —— scientific
being considered — YOS unrestricted — industrial —— transportation
X not applicable ___no —_ military — other:

Owner Of Pfoperty (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

nem® ild World Recreational Park

strest &number 13710 Central Avenue : . 'telephone no.:

city, town. Mitchellville S state and zip code  MD 20721
5. Location of Legal Descﬂptlon

courthouse, registry of deeds, ete. Prince George's County Courthouse liber 5383
city, town  Upper Marlboro S ' stste Maryland 20772

6. Representation in Existing =mistorical surveys

tive Prince George's County Historic Sites and Districts Plan

date 1981 —federal ___state X _county ___ioca
depository for survey records Historic Preservation Commission c/o M-NCPPC

! d 20772
city, town Upper Marlboro Maryland 2




e

7. Description

PG#74A-15

Survey VYo.
Condition ' Check one Check one
—_ exceilent —X deteriorated ____ unaitered — original site
— good —__ruins —X__ aitered —— moved date of move
—X_fair — unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

Partnership is a two-and-one-half-story side-gabled brick
plantation house of the eighteenth century, with Victorian renova-
tions of the mid-nineteenth century. Attached to the east gable end
is a frame kitchen wing. The building stands at the top of a knoll
now surrounded by a recreational park.

Exterior

The main block of Partnership is two-and-one-half stories
high and side-gabled, five bays by an irregular three bays, 59 by 35
1/2 feet. Brick work on all elevations shows evidences of rebuild-
ing. The main south facade is l1aid in Flemish bond with regularly-
placed glazed headers. There are four flush chimneys, two at each
gable end. The chimneys are all of the same height, but those of
the west facade are smaller and square in plan, while those of the
east facade are larger and rectangular in plan. The gable roof is
belcast and covered with asphalt shingles. The extended, tapered
eaves of the south and north elevations are distinguished by a boxed
wood cornice with crown molding and shallow modillions; the cornices
are returned at the east and west gable ends. The main block rests
on a brick foun-dation capped by a course of molded brick.

The principal entrance is in the central bay of the five-bay
south facade; it is sheltered by a flat-roof wooden porch with a
square plan, square columns and the remnants of a simple wooden
balustrade. This porch dates from the mid-twentieth century, and
replaces a wider, three-bay pedimented hip-roof porch with slim
Tuscan columns. The fixed, double-leaf cross-and-bible door is set
within a deep surround surmounted by a plain dentilled frieze. The
door is framed by sidelights over wainscot panels and a wide tran-
som, all of which are boarded up from the outside. The first and
second stories are separated by a four-course brick string course
laid in Flemish bond. Above the main entry, at second story level,
is a glazed, panelled door leading to the entry porch roof; in this
opening hangs a nine-pane over two-panel door, surmounted by a
fixed four-pane transom.

Windows on the south facade are 6/6 double hung sash with
wooden sills. The first-story windows are capped with splayed, flat
arches just below the string course, and are taller than those of
the second story. In all four of the first-story bays, there is
horizontally-laid infill masonry between the arches and the windows,
evidence that the original windows were larger than those currently
in place. The second-story windows have no lintels and, at their
tops, meet the narrow undecorated frieze of the wooden cornice. Al1l
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of the main (south) facade, except its extreme east and west edges,
retains old paint.

The west gable end is divided into three irregular bays,
each defined at the first and second story level by double-hung
windows of varying widths. The southmost bay has tall, narrow 4/4
window at each story, placed near the south end of the facade.
Similar narrow windows are centered under the apex of the gable, and
at loft Tevel is a slightly wider and shorter 6/6 window which
Tights the attic. The northmost bay of the gable end is defined by
tall 6/6 windows, slightly wider than those of the center and south
bays. A1l of the windows of the west gable end have concrete or
aggregate sills that are deteriorating. Each window is surmounted
by a simple jack arch, laid with small bricks at the first story and
taller bricks at the second. The southmost corner of the west
gable end is deteriorated at third Tevel, expos
ing the attic to the elements.

The north (rear) elevation has the same symmetrical arrange-
ment as the south, with a central door flanked by two 6/6 doubte
hung sash windows on each side. The windows and the door are sur-
mounted by splayed flat arches like those of the south facade. The
wide, single-leaf six-panel north door has neither porch nor stoop.
On the north elevation, a three-course string course forms a line of
demarcation between first and second stories.

The east gable end of the main block is largely concealed by
the east kitchen wing (which is inset from the south elevation of
the main block). The windows in the southmost bay of this east
gable end are similar to those elsewhere in the main block. The
first-story window is 6/6 double hung sash, similar in size to those
of the north and south elevations. Above this window at second
level is a narrow 4/4 window, similar to that in the south bay of
the west gable end. The Toft level is lighted by a 6/6 double hung
sash window, now in deteriorated condition.

Extending east from the main block is a two-story, side-
gabled, frame kitchen wing, inset from the main block on the south
and flush on the north. This wing postdates the main block of the
house, and apparently was built to replace thf smaller (detached)
brick kitchen of the late eighteenth century.® The wing is three
bays by two, and covered with plain horizontal board siding. The
south and north facades of the wing are identical: a central entry
flanked by a single 6/6 window (now boarded up). The panelled Greek
Revival style doors of the north and south elevations are slightly.
recessed; each has two tall panels over two short ones, and is
surmounted by a fixed, three-pane transom. The second-story win-
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dows, three on each of the south and north elevations, are square
six-pane sashes.

The east gable end of the wing is two bays wide. The south-
ern bay is fenestrated only at the first-story level, with a 6/6 -
double-hung sash window. The north bay contains a Greek Revival
style door, and a six-pane square sash window at the second story.
The wing is in seriously deteriorated condition; there is a large
opening in the south slope of the roof, and the south facade is
partially detached from the main block.

Interior

The interior of Partnership follows a modified Georgian
plan: central passage with alcove staircase, flanked by double
parlors. The principal south entrance to the main block leads into
a wide passage which extends to the north, at the end of which is a
corresponding rear door. The south door consists of two joined
leaves, each with three molded rectangular panes. Above it is a
large transom with leaded muntins in a pattern of continuous X's; it
is flanked by sidelights with the same criss-cross muntins (now
boarded up) above wainscot panels. In the rear (north) opening
hangs a single wide door with six molded rectangular panels. It is
surmounted by a four-pane transom; there are no
sidelights.

In the south section of the passage, a door in each of the
east and west walls leads into one of the flanking front parlors.
The passage is divided by an elliptical arch 18 feet north of the
main south entrance. Beyond it a wider stairhall takes up the
remaining 14-foot depth of the building; a two-run staircase is
built into the northeast alcove formed by the widening of the pas-
sage. The handsome dividing arch has panelled jambs and soffit,
each raised panel bordered by a narrow convex fluted molding. Wide
fluted pilasters support the elliptical arch; they have fully molded
capitals and bases, and are distinguished by stop-fluting in the
lower third. The capitals are further decorated with meanders and
gougework. The arch which springs from the capitals is highly
decorated not only with fluting and ogee backband, but with fine
gougework: a star pattern alternating with every five vertical
gouges on the fascia.

Beyond (to the north of) the arch, the passage widens to
form a staircase alcove in the northeast corner. The open-string
stair rises northward along the east wall to a landing in the north-



_AND

Descriprion

- C ey M
ZISTORICAL TRUST Suzvey lo.
ZTSTORIC SITES INVENTORY FORM

-—— -

Seccion 7

(continued)

PG#74A-15

east corner, then turns 90° and rises unsupported along the north
wall to the second story. The stair has a slim turned newel and
plain rectangular balusters; the balusters and fine polished rail
continue eastward on the second story to form a balustrade bounding
the stairwell.

Two front parlors (approximately 25 by 18 feet each) flank
the central passage in the south. Each was originally warmed by a
fireplace in its exterior wall. In the west parlor, the early
mantel has been replaced by a modern (ca. 1930’s) corbelled brick
surround; a slim plaster astragal molding has been applied above the
doors and windows around all four walls of this parlor. In the
north wall is a double door Teading from this southwest parlor into
the smaller (ca. 25 by 14 foot) northwest parlor. These doors hang
on hinges and open into the northwest parlor; each Teaf of the door
has eight rectangular panels, with moldings which are not the same
as the other first-story doors. The mantel in the west wall of the
northwest space has also been replaced, by a modern corbelled brick
surround Tike that in the southwest parlor.

Early features survive in the two east parlors. In the
larger southeast parlor, a fine wood Greek Revival style mantel
frames the (rebuilt) firebox. It has a plain frieze and a bold
Greek Revival style shelf with sharp profile (surmounted by a later
plain wood upper shelf). The firebox is flanked by pilasters with
sharp Greek fluting and fully molded capitals. The chimney breast
projects approximately three feet into the parlor, and is defined by
a vertical wooden bead; the inset space south of the chimney breast,
has been made into an alcove closet. This closet space is lighted
by a wide 6/6 window with panelled jambs and soffit, and a molded
surround which matches those in the rest of the main block. North
of the fireplace (in the space corresponding to the closet on the
south), a door opens into the east wing. A massive, deeply-worn
beam forms its threshhold; the door is framed by panelled jambs and
soffit, and was originally an exterior door.

A door in the north wall of the southeast parlor Teads into
the smaller (ca. 14 feet square) northeast space. In the east wall
of this small parlor is a Greek Revival style wood mantel identical
to that in the southeast parlor.

Surrounds of doors and windows are typical of the late
Federal style: a two-step, broken field, framed on the outside by a
plain backband, cyma recta molding and astragal, and on the inside
by an inner bead. Most windows have splayed jambs; in the south
parlors the jambs and soffits are panelled. In the rear (north)
elevations, the windows are fitted with two-part interior shutters,
with one flush panel in each Teaf. Doors generally have six raised
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panels. Floors are of plain wide board, all running east-west.

The stair rises to a wide central passage on the second
story, and the balusters and rail form a bounding balustrade around
the stairwell. Trim is the same on the second story as on the
first, and the second-story spaces reflect those below. In each of
the two west bed chambers, a stove pipe replaces the original fire-~
place. Plain wood mantels frame the fireplaces in the two east bed
chambers: each has plain frieze and pilasters, and the sharply-
profiled Greek Revival style shelf has been cut off in each case.
Panelled closets have been built outside the chimney breasts, which
(as on the first story) are defined by vertical wooden beads. 1In
several places in these second-story closets, lath can be observed;
most is riven, with some circular-sawn as well. From the small
northeast bed chamber, a door leads eastward down several steps into
the second story of the east wing.

At the south end of the second-story passage is a glazed,
panelled door (nine panes over two molded panels) with a four-pane
transom. This door opened onto the balcony over the main entry
porch. Immediately east of this door, four steps wind to a one-run
staircase which rises northward to the attic along the east wall of
the passage. The stair is open-string with slim turned newel (not
the same as that of the main stair) and plain rectangular balusters.

The attic extends above the north part of the house, and the
space has clearly been rebuilt. There is no ridge pole; the rafters
are joined at the ridge by long wood pegs. There is clear-evidence
in the rafter structure that there were once three symmetrically-
spaced dormers in the south plane of the roof. The brick bonding in
the gable ends is Flemish, and floor boards are wide, and all visi-
ble ceiling Tath is circular-sawn. (Stored in the attic space are
many louvered wood shutters, doors and transoms.)

Beneath the main block of the house is a full basement,
almost certainly constructed in several stages. The basement space
is divided into three nearly-equal spaces in the south (beneath the
front parlors and passage of the house, approximately 3/5 of the
depth of the structure), and one long transverse space in the north.
A11 foundation walls appear to be Taid in English bond. Anomalies
in the brickwork of the two interior walls suggest that they may
have been constructed to replace an earlier post-in-ground founda-
tion; if this is true, this Tate eighteenth century structure may
incorporate a small, modest dwelling of nearly a century earlier.
The fireplace supports in the southeast, northeast and northwest; in
the southwest, there is a good deal of new material (probably in
repair of a serious crack in the foundation), and the north and
south interior walls are reinforced with concrete.
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Extending east from the main block and accessible from the
easterly parlors is a kitchen wing which consists of two spaces and
an enclosed secondary stair: kitchen and pantry on the first story,
and similar spaces above. The door from the southeast parlor of the
main block leads into a Targe pantry space with a stove pipe in its
west wall. In the southwest corner of the pantry space is an en- -
closed winding stair to the second-story spaces of the wing; this
stair is in ruinous condition and could not be examined. Narrow
bead wainscoting covers the interior walls of the pantry, and covers
and closes one of the doors into the kitchen to the east.

A second door leads into the easterly kitchen space. Cen-
tered in the east exterior wall of the kitchen is a large fireplace
framed by a plain wood mantel. In the west wall, cupboards (which
appear to be quite old) cover the original door opening cited supra.
Circular-sawn lath can be observed in this west wall. Wainscoting
(with wider bands than that in the pantry) covers the walls below
the north and south windows. There is an exterior east door north
of the fireplace.

Door and window surrounds in the wing are of plain board.
The second-story spaces could not be examined because of serious
water damage and ruinous condition. There is no basement beneath
the kitchen wing.

The house at Partnership stands on a high knoll in the midst
of a recreational park, overlooking a roller coaster. It is framed
by Targe old trees. Immediately east of the kitchen wing is an old
well, now closed and capped. Approximately 50 yards southwest of
the house is a gravestone, lying flush with the surface of the
ground, but in good and quite legible condition. It marks the
burial of Ellinor Hall, five-year-old daughter of Benjamin and Mary
Hall of Charles County; the date of death is uncertain because of a
break in the stone, but it appears to be 1702, and reflects the
residence of the first generation of the Hall family on the Partner-
ship tract.

1. Federal Direct Tax, 1798, Collington and Western Branch
Hundreds. This tax records a single-story brick kitchen 25
by 14 feet; this is the size of the present kitchen space, -
i.e., the easterly space of the wing. It is possible that
the foundation of the original kitchen was reused to support
the east part of the present wing.
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Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

Partnership is a multi-period brick plantation house
which incorporates important architectural features from
both the Federal and Greek Revival periods. Located in the
heart of "The Forest" of Prince George’s County, it was the
seat of two important County families, the Halls and the
Berrys, during the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries. It
is one of only four surviving buildings of this type, peri-
od, and significance in the central section of the County.

The tract known as PartnershiP was patented in 1680 to
Nicholas Sewall and John Darnell. Early in the eighteenth
century, more than 1,000 acres of Partnership were sold to
Benjamin Hall of Charles County. When Benjamin Hall wrote
his will in 1720, he had begun, but not finished, a new
house on the Partnership plantation, while living in an
older house on the same property. He devised that his
plantation should_be equally divided between his wife, Mary,
and son, Francis.?

Francis Hall, who had inherited Partnership from his
father in 1721, died in 1785. His will devised his land to
his two sons, Benjamin II and Richard. Benjamin was to
receive the subject property, i.e., all of Francis Hall’s
land except the part on which his son Richard B. Hall then
lived. Francis Hall further specified in his will that this
property was to be left by Benjamin Hall to his son, Henry
Lowe Hall, grandson of the testator.

It was no doubt Benjamin Hall II who built the present
main block of the house at Partnership, perhaps incorporat-
ing as its nucleus the original Hall family dwelling in
which his grandfather had died. The form, construction, and
many of the architectural details of the house, both exteri-
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or and interior, are typical of high style plantation-houses
of the 1790’s. 1In 1798, at the time of the first Federal
Direct Tax, the house and immediate outbuildings were as-
sessed at $1,800, one of the highest values in the east-
central section of the County. It was reported as a two-
story brick dwelling house, 55 by 36 feet, with a one-story,
25 by 14 foot brick kitchen: on the immediate grounds stood
a frame meat house, 20 by 12 feet, a store house, 20 by 12
feet, and a carriage house, 20 by 16 feet. The house was
owned and occupied by Benjamin Hall.

At the end of the eighteenth century, Partnership was
one of only five brick mansions in central Prince George'’s
County {(Collington and Western Branch Hundreds) which was
valued at $1,500 or more. One of these, Pleasant Prospect
in Woodmore (#74A-6), was new in 1798; 1ike Partnership, it
was renovated in the mid-nineteenth century. Concord in
Capitol Heights (#75A-1) was constructed circa 1797; it was
also renovated in the nineteenth century and is much simpler
in detail, with plain interior trim. Mount Lubentia in
Largo (#73-16) was not quite finished in 1798; it is the
most elegant of these four Federal-style brick mansions, and
retains essentially all of its original interior trim. A
fifth brick dwelling, that of Benjamin Hall’s brother,
Richard B. Hall, was assessed with its immediate outbuild-
ings at $1,500; it no longer stands.’

Benjamin Hall died in 1803. As his father had directed
less than 20 years earlier, he devised his Partnership
plantation to his son, Henry Lowe Hall; it remained-the home
of the younger Hall until 1817.° In that year, Hall be-
queathed his plantation to his nephew, Benjamin Hall Clark,
and the property passed through several short-term owners
until it was sold in 1844 to Thomas Berry of Oxon Hill
Manor. It was his son, Thomas E. Berry, who rebuilt and
renovated the old Hall dwelling with interior trim in the
Greek Revival style; during the residence of Thomas E Berry,
the house at Partnership achieved essentially the configura-
tion which it has today. It was probably at this time that
the original one-story brick kitchen was replaced by the
present two-story frame kitchen wing.

Thomas E. Berry and his wife, Elizabeth, were descen-
dants of one of Prince George’s County’s most well-known
families. Zachariah Berry, grandfather of both of them, had
built Concord (cf. supra), one of the brick mansions of the
Federal period which most resembles Partnership, and one of
his sons (father of Thomas E. Berry) had acquired the vener-
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able Oxon Hill Manor, seat of the Addison family. Other
members of this immediate family owned and resided at Graden
and Waring’s Grove. With the acquisition of the Hall house
at Partnership, the Berry family became closely associated
with another of the most important early plantation estab-
lishments in the County.?

In 1878 Thomas E. Berry was judged incompetent and
unable to manage his real estate. Partnership was conveyed
to his son, Norman Berry, who managed the property and
resided in the house until the end of the century. During
the twentieth century, Partnershig was the home principally
of the White and Phelps families. ;

Partnership was photographed in 1936, during the owner-
ship of the Phelps family, by Historic American Buildings
Survey staff; at that time the south entry was sheltered by
a three-bay, hip-roof pedimented entry porch with slim
Tuscan columns. In the 1950’s, the Phelps family replaced
this porch with the present one-bay flat-roof entry porch.1°
Also during the Phelps residence, the mantels in the two
westerly parlors were replaced by corbelled brick surrounds.
In the 1970's, the property around Partnership was acquired
by a Wildlife Safari Park company,”and-a theme park was
developed around the knoll on which the old house stands.
During these years, the brick mansion was used only for
storage of supplies and equipment, and serious deterioration
began. More recently, in 1981, the property was conveyed to
a Recreational Park company, and the same surrounding land
has been developed with swimming pools, roller-coaster, and
other amusement concessions.'' The historic house stands on
a high point of land overlooking the roller coaster, and
continues to deteriorate.

12

The house at Partnership is an important example of a
composite building: a fine eighteenth-century Federal-style
brick plantation house which may incorporate an earlier
small dwelling, with Greek Revival style renovations of the
1840’s. It was the home during the eighteenth and nine-
teenth centuries of two of Prince George’s County’s most
prominent families.

Notes -
' patent #21:196.

¢ Prince George’s County Will #1:115; see also Prince
George’s County Deeds C:228, E:538, 598.
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3 Prince George’s County Will T#1:223.

* Federal Direct Tax, 1798, Collington and Western Branch
Hundreds.

> ibid.
¢ Prince George’s County Will T#1:555.

" Prince George’s County Will TT#1:207; Deed JBB #3:470.
8 Bowie, E.G., Across the Years in Prince George’s County,
Genealogical Publishing Company, 1975; Prince George’s
County Genealogical Society, Stones and Bones, 1984; Census
for Prince George’s County, 1850, 1860, 1880.

° Prince George’s County Equity #1208; see also Chain of
Title.

1 See Historic American Buildings Survey, 1936; MD. 17-
KOLB-V, also photograph in Forman, H. C., 01d Buildings,
Gardens and Furniture in Tidewater, Maryland, Tidewater
Publishers, Cambridge, 1967. Wilfong, James C. Jr., "Part-
nership" in Enquirer-Gazette, 9 May 1968.

" See Chain of Title.

12 Partnership was also at times known as "Ellerslie" and
"Pleasant Hill",
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Teturn to: Mzryland Historiczl Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annzpolis, Maryland 21401
(03 Z2eo-3LRE
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P.G.#T74A-15
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INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

THINAME

HISTORIC .
Partnership

AND/OR COMMON . P
Pleasant Hill

or Zllerslie

'BALOCATION

STREET & NUMBER .
13710 Central Avenue

CITY. TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Mitchellville —_ VICINITY OF 5th
STATE COUNTY
Tarvland Prince George's
[EJ CLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
—DISTRICT __PUBLIC __OCCUPIED __AGRICULTURE —MUSEUM
X_BUILDING(S) X PRIVATE X unoccurieo _COMMERCIAL X PARK
—_STRUCTURE __BOTH —WORK IN PROGRESS —EDUCATIONAL  __PRIVATE RESIDENCE
—SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE ®_ENTERTAINMENT _RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT —IN PROCESS —YES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT —_SCIENTIFIC
—BEING CONSIDERED __YES: UNRESTRICTED —_INDUSTRIAL —_TRANSPORTATION
o _NO __MIUTARY —OTHER:
EJOWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME S. Pisher et al Telephone #:
S$TREET & NUMBER
13710 Central Ave.
CITY. TOWN : sTaTE, Zip code
Mitchellville — VICINITY OF slaryland

TALOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Liber #: 5178

COURTHOUSE. Folio #: 328
REGISTRY OF DEEDS,ETC. G_ CO . Courthouse
STREET & NUMBER
oin Street
CITY. TOWN

Upper Iizrlboro, Id.

STATE

TAREPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE

?.¢. Inventory of Eistoric Sites

(zlso EABS 1936)

DATE

1974

—FEDERAL _STATE 3X_COUNTY _LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

Calvert lLiansion, -NCPPC, 4811 Riverdale =2d.

CITY. TOWN
Riverdale, d 20737

STATE




DESCRIPTION S

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED - __UNALTERED - X_ORIGINAL SITE
—GOOD __RUINS X ALTERED _MOVED DATE
S FAIR __UNEXPOSED

—

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Partnersnip is a %vo-siory brick house, vith its soush
(main) +d north facades 1laid in rlemish sond with zlazed
headers., It is five bays wide. “he entramce is in the cen-
tral bay, sheltered by a small flat-roofed porch. 3Betwesn
first and second stories is a four-course siring course.

The cornice is supported with console brackets, and the
gable roof has kicks at the eaves. At each ganle end are

two interior chimneys. Parts oI both south end north Tacades,
as well as of the west gable end, show evidence of retuilaing
and refenestration. The plan of the main seciion is a cen-
tral hall with two parlors on 2zch side. A Two-story
three-bay frame kitchen wing with end chimney extends from
the east end of the main olock,

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY




Bl SIGNIFICANCE

PC4L (S

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

__PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLUGY-PREHISTORIC —.COMMUNITY PLANNING - —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE —RELIGION

—1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC _CONSERVATION .. . —LAW —SCIENCE

__1500-1599 _AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS —LITERATURE __SCULPTURE

—_1800-1699 XARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY __SOCIALHUMANITARIAN
X_1700-1799 —ART —ENGINEERING —MUSIC —THEATER

—1800-1899 —COMMERCE —EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT __PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION

—1900- —_COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY _—POLITICS/GOVERNMENT X _OTHER (SPECIFY)

__INVENTION Local hisyory
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In 1721 Benjamin Hall bequeathed his property knowm
as Partnership to his wife and son, and described it as in-
cluding a '"house I am about building".1 Tnis may have Dbeen
the original structure of the subject house, improved or
rebuilt by 1798 when it belonged to his grandson, also Ben-
jamin Hallj; at that time, as reported in the Federal Direct
Tax, it was a two-story brick house, 55 by 36 feet, with a
one-story kitchen, 24 by 14 feet.2 ‘“he house has been con-
siderably altered since 1798, with much of the rebuilding
probably done during the ownership of the Thomas Berry
fanily (1844—1891).3 Since that %ite, <he house at Partner—
ship has been the home of many different families. During
the 1970's the land around it was devedoped into a wildlife
preserve which closed after a few years. The house stands
empty now, awaiting the opening of a simiiar new safari-
park; it is being considered as the possible site of a
"Country Inn" restaurant.
1. Will #1:115
2. rfederal Direct Yax for P.G. Co. 1798

3. Deeds JBB#3:470; WAJ#3:3; JW3-%20:21; IZquity cases
#81,#1208

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY




[EJMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Deeds JRR3:4703 Jad=3:3; J mF20:21
Touity #81, #1208

il #1:115

Federal Direct Tax for P.F ., Co. 1798

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
[IGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

~ LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY
EZ1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE )
Susan G, Pearl/llargaret /. Cook
ORGANIZATION - A . DATE
v N i e k=) + n .
P.G, Historiczl & Cultural ‘rust Jan 1981
STREET & NUMBER A B TELEPHONE ~
Calvert iansion, IICPPC, £811 Riverdale Rd. 779-2011
CiTY OR TOWN STATE

Riverdale, Md. 20737

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland,-Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438

»s. 108




5178:3%28
19 Oct 1979
NDeed

4770:479
9 May 1977
Deed

4709:374
21 Dec 1976
Deed

L~ 4239:79
<25 June 1973
Deed

4239:73
25 June 1973
Deed

-~

4239:69
21 June 1973
Deed

2643:049
29 Nov 1961
Deed

1988:213
23 Apr 1956
Deed

375:2472
15 Dec 1931
Deed

GPH#£2:209
25 Jan 1921
Will

9:307
2 Oct 1902
Deed

6:396
13 Jan 19C2
Deed

CEAIN Cr l1ITIE
PLRONERSHIP

2.G.ET74A-15

Leisure Attractions (ABC) to S. Fisher et
al, 120.896 acres

MNCPEC to ARC Scenic Wildlife Attrac-
tions

ABC Scenic Wildlife Attractions (formerly
Mallwar, Inc.) to MNCPPC

Claude Carrick & llargaret Carrick to
Mallwar, Inc. 37.736 acres

Robert Arnold & Margaret Arnold to
el lwar, Inc, 26.38 acres

Henry [I. #Witt to Mallwar, Inc.
56.776 acres

Taylor Johnson Phelps & llargaret A.
Phelps to James i, Phelps, interest
in 280 acres

W ¢

Jesse Lee Hall, Jr. to Carl P. Phelps
et al

llamie T, Thite to William 2. Thelps,
280 acres

Je. Newton Thite, testator: to lamie T,
“mite, all property

Samuel V. lagruder to J. Newton
White, 280 acres

Zdmund Lyddane to Samuel 7. lagruder,
280 acres



5:234
17 Oct 1901
Deed

JT¥B#39:318
15 Yar 1897
Deed

JYB#3T7:743
11 Jan 1897
Deed

JB#20:21
29 Sept 1891
Deed

JiB#6 :536
1 Oct 1886
Mtg

YAT#3:3
1878
Deed

#1208
1878
Bquity

#81
1854
Tquity

JBB#3:470
13 Jan 1844
Deed

AB#4:131
2 Jan 1826
Deed

AB#3:487
15 Jan 1825
Deed

AR#3:135
27 Nov 1823
Deed

n:1 9207
6 lay 1817
¥ill

JRIT=16 1342
11 spr 1815
Mg

Chain of Title, cont'd
Partnership, 744i-15
fe-

Annie 7. Lanb <o Sdmund Lydasne,

280 =cres rarinership

Caroline H. Stanley and James G. Stanley
to Annie 7, Lamb, 280 acres Partnership

Charles H. Stanley, trustee, to
Caroline H. Stanley, 280 acres of
Partnership

L.C. Backus assigns mortgage (JWB#5:536)
to R. Irving Bowie; Bowie subsequently
assigns mortgage to Caroline H. Stanley

Norman Berry and Caroline 1. Berry
to L.C. Backus, 280 acres Partnership

Joseph K. Roberts, Jr., trustee, to
Norman Berry, 280 acres Partnership

Thomas =. Berry declared lunatic; Joseph
K. Roberts,Jr., trustee, %0 sell Partner-
ship to Norman Berry

Thomas Berry (father of above [homas E.
Berry) declared lunatic; Thomas 3. Berry
appointed %o be in charge of his estate

John Johnson, appointed by Chancery Court
to sell real estate of John Contee, to
Thomas Berry

Henry W. Young to John Contee

Benjamin H., Clarke to Henry Young,
434 acres Partnership

o William A, Hall to Benjamin E, Clarke

Henry Lowe hall to Benjiamin Hall Clarxe
(7illiam A. Hall, executor)

all to William A. Hall,
re Henry Lowe Eall lives,
O acres

Henry Lowe =
prop:riy whe
houwe and 30



Chain of Title, cont'd
Partnership, 744-15

&

149 :555 Benjamin He211 of Francis, tz2stator;

2 Apr 1803 to Henry Lowe Hzll

Jill

T#1:223 Francis ¥all, tzsstator; to son Benjamin
19 Sept 1785 Eall, all land (except part on which son
¥ill Richard 3., Hell lives); then %o Benjamin's

son, Henry Lowe Hall

NN :104 John Digges %o Franecis Hall

28 Oct 1752

Deed

#1:115 Benjamin Hall, testator; to wife ilary,
29 liar 1721 then to son rancis Hall, "house I am
Will about building"
"F:598 Charles Digges to Benjamin HEzall,

26 sar 1717 50 acres

Deed

T:538 William Holloway and John Iurdick

27 June 1716 to Benjamin Hall, 250 acres

Deed

C:228 Richard Harrison  to Benjamin hall,
23 Nov 1708 800 acres

Deed
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HISTCRIC SITES SUMMARY SHEET

P.G. County Survey &  T74A-15 pDate (1721?), 18th c., ca,1850

Building Nan¢ Partnership

location Central Avenue (Wildlife Preserve), Mitchellville

Open to Public = ves o

Partnership is a two-story brick house, with its south (main) and
north facades laid in Plemish bond with glazed henders, 1% is flive
bays wide, Thqéntrance is in the central bay, sheltered by a small
flat-roofed porch, BRBetween first and second stories is a four-course
string course, The cornice is supported with console brackets, and
the gable roof has kicks at the eaves. Al each gable end are two
interior chimneys. Parts of both south and north facades, as well as
of the west gable end, show evidence of rebuilding and refenestration.
The plan of the main section is a central hall with two parlors on
. each side. A two-story threeﬁhay frame kitchen wing with end chimney
f’*]’ extends from the east end of the main block.
In 1721 Benjamin Hall bequeathed his property known &s Partner-
ship to his wife and son, and described it as including a "nouse I am about
building". This may have beeﬁ the original structure, improved or re-
built by 1798 when it belon :ed to his grandson, also Benjamin Hallj;
at that time, as reported in the Pederal Direct lax, it was a two-story
brick house, 55 by 36 feet, with a one-story kitchen, 24 by 14 feet.
The house has been considerably altered since 1798, with much of the .
rebuilding probably done during the ownership of the Thomas Berry
family (1844-1891 ). Since that time, the house at Partnership has
been the home of many different (familics. (kipiss the 1970's the land
around it was developed into a|wildlife precerve which closed after a
few years. The house stands empty now, awaiting the opening ol a )
similer new safari-park; it is| being considered as the possible site
of a "Country Imn" restaurant. *s

i Priv/unocc/? use/ fair ' ;:;1.
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SOUTHERN MARYLAND 241

Two Post-Revolutionaries: Ellserlie and
Pleasant Prospect

The large tract of land known as “The Partnership” contained 1,500 acres
surveyed in 1680 for Major Nicholas Sewall and John Darnall, and lay in
Collington "Hundred” on the "easternmost fork” of the “western branch™ of
the Patuxent River. Today the property is known as Pastnership Farm ot
Ellserlie (Fig. 205). The single gravestone copied off by this writer reads as
follows: "Here lyeth the Body of Elinor Hall Daughter to Benj. & Mary Hall
of Charles County Maryland who Departed this Life on Friday ye 17 day of
July An[no}1702 Aged 5 years 9 months.”

The mansion where little Elinor lived is two-storey brick, with a floor plan
of two rooms on either side of a central passageway, and the broad stairway
takes up a small alcove or “ell” in the passage. The best woodwork in the
house is the elliptical arch on fluted Doric pilasters which divides the passage-
way into two parts (Fig. 206B). The jambs and sofit of the arch are
panelled and have rope mouldings.

»—  One should never date the erection of the house from a gravestone, as some

writers have done. This place is, of course, not “before 1702,”"—not even
1750, if the architectural evidence is read correctly. The eatliest portion of the
structure is what remains of the outer brick shell. Although the brick walls
were at one time stuccoed over and have been extensively repaired, Flemish
bond with glazed headers, and English bonding below the watertable are visible.
Some of the windows have gauged or rubbed flat arches; others do not. The
narrow, two-pane-wide windows in the west gable-end are curious. The reason
for this may be that examination of the brickwork and fenestration of the
west gable-end leads one to suspect that the whole wall is a replacement. The
main or south fagade originally had gauged flat arches over the windows, and is
now decorated with a belt course four bricks wide (Fig. 206A). The cornice
with modillions and the roof swallow-tail, or “kick’” out, are modern.

The front doorway with side-lights of horizontal diamonds and transom
light with vertical diamonds belongs to the early 19th century. Even though
the brickwork might indicate an earlier date, the floor plan and interior wood-
work give evidence of a time of construction of about 1780-90. A dairy is the
only outhouse left.

Something on the same order of design and period of building is the brick,
two-storey domicile, Pleasant Prospect (Fig. 204), ancient seat of members of
the Contee, Hill, and Duckett families. Like E/lseriie we encounter a floor
plan of two rooms on either side of a passageway, Flemish bonded brickwork,
and rubbed brick arches on some of the windows. The hipped-roof wing and
—-urtain, both of brick, are more modern.

Pleasant Prospect was probably erected by a man called “Johne Clarke,”
whose name still remains in the brickwork of the garden fagade.




8. 204(top). Pleasunt Prospect (c. 1780-90), Prince George's County, prtschts Victorian gable
and farmer’'s porch. HABS. |

1g. 205(bottom). The carliest part of Parinership Furm, or Ellserlie, is what remains of the
outer hrick shell, Wilfong,
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L state Mde HISTORIC AMERICAN BUILDINGS SURVEY
COUNTY INVENTORY
TOWN VICINITY #31*
streeTno. 1mile no. Md. 214 2 NAME  partnership Farms

DATE OR PERIOD 1718
oriGINAL owNER Digges-Hill STYLE Queen Anne?

ORIGINAL USE Pﬁgigsdwell R v

RESENT OWNER
raes BUILDER

PRESENT USE deserted
WALL CONSTRUCTION brick
NO. OF STORIES 2%

3. FOR LIBRARY OF CONGRESS USE

4. NOTABLE FEATURES, HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND DESCRIPTION OPEN TO PUBLIC

Long dirt road to house.
' House quite secluded.
Flemish bond-glazed headers. No glazed headers on belt cours.
Needs some repair.
Condition of west wall indicates the existence of & wing at one
time.
Eastern extention clapboard.
Outbuilding to east,
Beautiful location, nice landed estate.

work.
Generally good condition tho' uninhabited.

House should be restored.
Estremely fine example of early 18th cent. architecture in BGC

5, €. W, Tk - Rpatd 30,1767 -

,.-/'Jmn,ai-vg 0k 177 ek Hall howa .

UAGS - 3 phatoes
5. PHYSICAL CONDITION OF STRUCTURE  Endangered Interior Exterior

House appears/ to have many orig. window frames and some orig wood:

Owner in foreigh service and evidently interested in restoring

& Colov # 158,759,760, 85°7
6. LOCATION MAP (Plan Optional) 7. PHOTOGRAPH

|8. PUBLISHED SOURCES (Author, Title, Pages) + NAME, ADDRESS AND TITLE OF RECORDER
INTERVIEWS, RECORDS, PHOTOS, ETC.
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NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES, NATIONAL PARKS SERVICE

AND/OR HISTORIC:

e
¥

T L OCATION

Partnershlp or Ellerslle

STREET ANDC NUMBER:

Central Avenue (Rte. 214)
CIiTY OR TOWN:
Largo -
STATE COUNTY:
_ Maryland _ Prince George's
[3 CLASSIFICATION = e d e s
CATEGORY STATUS ACCESSIBLE
(Check Ons) OWNERSHIP TO THE PUBLIC
] Distriet {f Building |[J Public Public Acquisition: ] Occupind Yas:
] Site 3 Structure m Privote [ In Process @ Unoccupied T1 Restricted
O Object |3 Both [3 Being Considered [ Preservation work L] Unrestricted
in progress B8 No

PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

[3 Agricultoral {3 Government 3 Park [3 Transportation [0 Comments
{) Commarcial (3 industrial ] Private Residencs {il] Other (Specity)

{7] Educational 3 Milirary [J Religious Vacant

[ Entertainment {7 Museum [ Scientific Secured

4. OWNER OF PROPERTY . . 1 a- -

OWNER’'S NAME:

A.B.C. Leisure (The Wlldllfe Preserve)

STREET AND NUMBER:

Central Avenue (Rte. 214)

CITY OR TOWN:

Largo

STATE:

COURTHOUS: SEGISTRY OF D"EDS ET

rince George S County Courthouse

STREET AND NUMBER:

S

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

Upper Marlboro Maryland

Title Reference of Cur*en* Deed (Book & Eq. #):
EPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

{TLE OF SURVEY:

Historic American Buildings Survey

DATE OF SURVEY: 1936 B3 Foederal ] State O County [ Loca!
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:
Library of Congress
STREET AND NUMBER:
10 1st Street SE
CITY OR TOWN: STATE:

Washington, DC

P5 =709

2



Fe:7vk 1S

(7 BESCRiPTION

{Check Ones)
CONDITION ] Excellent (] Good ) Foir ] Deteriorated {J Ruins ] ‘Unexposed
(Check One) (Check Onse)
[E)‘S Altersd [ Uncltered [ Moved 5] Original Sits

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT # 4D ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The building is a two story, brick structure with a five
bay, main (south) facade laid up in Flemish bond with glazed
headers. The five bay facade has a central doorway and 6/6
double hung sash. The water table is one course of diagonal
profile. Over the present windows, there are jack arches of
one header and one stretcher tall; below this is in~filling
to the top of the window frames. The frames are narrow, with

a head on the inside edge and flat mouldings of the Federal

33

period. Between the first and second floors there is a four
coursé string belt. The wide cornice with console brackets
has an ogee crown moulding. The porch is of recent date.

The gable ends have a bell gable roof. At either end
there are double flush gable chimneys, those on the east end
being larger than those on the south end. Fenestration on the

gable ends is irregular, with tall, narrow 4/4 double hung

SNOIL1DODNYLSNI

sash windows. Some of the older window openings are segmentally
arched; the new openings on the west gable end have small, flat

arches.

The rear facade is identical to the front except that the

porch has been removed.
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SEE

7015

[2. SIGNMIFICANCE =~

PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)
[ Pre-Columbion {0 16th Century
O 15th Century 3 17th Century

@ 18th Century {7 20th Century
19th Century

SPECIFIC DATE!S) (7f Applicable and Known)

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More a» Appropriate)

Abor iginal {3 Education
D Prehistoric [ Engineering
[ Histeric 3 industry
. Agriculture {1 invention
3 Architecture ] Landscape
3 Ar Architecture
O Commerce [ Literoture
3 Communications O Military
{3 Conservotion 3 Music

g0 .00 ao

Political [ Urban Planning

Religion/Phi. 3 Other (Specity)
losophy

Science

Sculpture

Social/Human-

itarion

Theoter

Transportation

STATEMENT OF SIiGNIFICANCE

PS-~709
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i9. MAJOR SIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

!

[ 10. GECOGRAPHICAL DATA

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE propeRTy |0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
. R .. OF LESS TH AN TEN ACRES
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE " LatmiTube 1 " 'LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
NwW o » » o » » [o] » » o . .'- -
NE (-] ’ - o ’ »
SE ° 7 [PSERT: BRI 6'.;'.[‘; s - , [ R A .
oW o . » -] ] -

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:

‘Acreage Justification:

i

. FORM PREPARED BY == - = -

=3
-

NAME AND TITLE:

Christopher Owens, Park Historian

ORGANIZATION DATE

MNCPPC - T T 8 oct 74

STREET AND NUMBER: .

8787 Georgia Avenue

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

Silver Spring Maryland

45J5tate Liaison Officer Review: (Office Use Only)

Significance of this property is:
National [T] State [ Local (7]

Signature

335
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5383:139
10 March 1981
Deed

5178:328
19 Oct. 1979
Deed

4770:479
9 May 1977
Deed

4709:374
21 Dec. 1976
Deed

4239:79
25 June 1973
Deed

4239:79
25 June 1973
Deed

4239:69
21 June 1973
Deed

2643:649
29 Nov. 1961
Deed

375:242
15 Dec. 1931
Deed

GPH #2:209
25 Jan. 1921
Will

9:367
2 Oct. 1902
Deed

6:396
13 Jan. 1902
Deed

CHAIN OF TITLE

PARTNERSHIP
P.G. #74A-15

Stuart Fisher et al to Recreational Wildlife
Park Associates; two parcels of land amounting
to 278.814 acres.

Leisure Attractions (ABC) to S. Fisher et al,
120.896 acres.

M-NCPPC to ABC Scenic Wildlife Attractions.

ABC Scenic Wildlife Attractions (formerly
Mallwar, Inc.) to M-NCPPC.

Claude Carrick & Margaret Carrick to Mallwar,
Inc. 37.736 acres of Partnership.

Robert Arnold & Margaret Arnold to Mallwar, Inc.
26.38 acres of Partnership.

Henry M. Witt to Mallwar, Inc. 56.776 acres of
Partnership.

Taylor Johnson Phelps & Margaret A. Phelps to
James M. Phelps, one-half interest in 280 acres
of Partnership.

Mamie E. White to William P. Phelps, 280 acres
of Partnership.

J. Newton White, testator: to Mamie E. White,
all real estate.

Samuel W. Magruder to J. Newtown White, 280
acres of Partnership.

Edmund Lyddane to Samuel W. Magruder, 280 acres
of Partnership.



5:234

17 Oct. 1901
Deed

JWB #39:318

15 March 1897
Deed

JWB #37:743
11 Jan. 1897
Deed

JWB #20:21
29 Sept 1891
Deed

JWB #6:536

1 Oct. 1886
Mortgage

WAJ #3:3

8 June 1881
Deed

#1208

1878

Equity

#81

1854

Equity

JBB #3:420
13 Jan. 1844
Deed

AB #4:131

2 Jan. 1826
Deed

AB #3:487

15 Jan. 1825
Deed

AB #3:135

27 Nov. 1823
Deed

TT #1:207

6 May 1817
Will

Annie W. Lamb to Edmund Lyddane, 280 acres of
Partnership.

Caroline H. Stanley and James G. Stanley to
Annie W. Lamb, 280 acres of Partnership.

Charles H. Stanley, trustee, to Caroline H.
Stanley, 280 acres of Partnership.

L.C. Backus assigns mortgage (JWB #6:536) to R.
Irving Bowie; Bowie subsequently assigns mort-
gage to Caroline H. Stanley.

Norman Berry and Caroline M. Berry to L.C.
Backus, 280 acres of Partnership.

Joseph K. Roberts, Jr., trustee, to Norman Ber-
ry, 280 acres of Partnership.

Thomas E. Berry declared lunatic; Joseph K.
Roberts, Jr., trustee, to sell Partnership to
Norman Berry.

Thomas Berry (father of Thomas E. Berry) de-
clared lunatic; Thomas E. Berry appointed to be
in charge of his estate.

John Johnson, appointed by Chancery Court to
sell real estate of John Contee, to Thomas Berry
all tract known as Partnership, the same land
conveyed in 1826 by Young to Contee by AB
#4:131.

Henry W. Young to John Contee., 434 acres of
Partnership.

Benjamin H. Clarke to Henry Young, 434 acres of
Partnership.

William A. Hall to Benjamin H. Clarke, Partner-
ship, house and 300 acres.

Henry Lowe Hall, testator, to Benjamin Hall
Clarke (William A. Hall, executor) all real
estate, Partnership.
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JRM #16:342
11 April 1815
Mortgage

T #1:555
2 April 1803
Will

T #1:223
19 Sept. 1785
Will

#1:115
29 March 1721
Will

E:598
26 March 1717
Deed

E:538
27 June 1716
Deed

C:228
23 Nov. 1708
Deed

Henry Lowe Hall to William A. Hall, property
where Henry Lowe Hall lives, house and 300
acres.

Benjamin Hall of Francis, testator; to son Henry
Lowe Hall, all real estate, Partnership.

Francis Hall, testator; to son Benjamin Hall,
all land (except part on which son Richard B.
Hall lives); then to Benjamin’s son, Henry Lowe
Hall.

Benjamin Hall, testator; to wife Mary, then to
son Francis Hall, "house I am about building",
all real estate to be divided equally between
Mary and Francis.

Charles Digges to Benjamin Hall, 50 acres of
Partnership.

William Holloway and John Murdick to Benjamin
Hall, 250 acres of Partnership.

Richard Harrison to Benjamin Hall, 800 acres of
Partnership.
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